AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
YECA GOVERNING BOARD
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA 95695
August 6, 2014
3:00 P.M. Public Session

ALL ITEMS ARE FOR ACTION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED WITH AN ASTERISK (*).

1. Call to Order (3:00 PM)

2. Public Comment *

Speakers must state their name and city of residence for the record and limit their remarks to three
minutes. Members of the public audience may address the Governing Board on any item not on
today’s agenda. No response is required and no action can be taken, however, the Governing
Board may add the item to the agenda of a future meeting.

3. Announcements

4. Approval of the Agenda

5. Consent Agenda

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Governing
Board, member of the audience, or staff requests that the Governing Board remove an item. If an
item is removed, it will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the Agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes from the June 4, 2014 Regular Meeting - Pg. 1
b. Operations Division Report - Pg. 4
c. Current Year Budget Status Update - Pg. 6

6. FY13 External Audit Presentation, Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
a. FY13 Final Audit - Attachment

7. Software Cost Allocations
a. Software Cost Allocation Staff Summary - Pg. 8

8. Standard Levels of Service
a. YECA Standard Levels of Service Staff Summary - Pg. 9

9. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting September 3, 2014



10. Items for Future Agenda

11. Adjournment

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was available for public review and posted
on/or before August 1, 2014 on the bulletin board outside of the Yolo County Board of Supervisors
Chambers, Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court St., Woodland, California and on the
agency website: http://www.yeca911.org/BoardCalendar2014.html

A bk, T ta /4,&{/] -

**The meeting room is wheelchair accessible and disabled parking is available. If you are a person
with a disability and you need disability related accommodations to attend the meeting, please contact
Marci Criste at (530) 666-8919 or (530) 666-8909 (fax). Requests for accommodations must be made
at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. **



Agenda Item: S.a.

YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA)
GOVERNING BOARD
June 4, 2014

MINUTES

The YECA Governing Board met on Wednesday, June 4, 2014 at the Yolo County Bauer Bldg.,
Suite #1600 (Thompson Room), Woodland CA. Board Chair Gary Fredericksen called the
meeting to order at 3:02 p.m.

PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Gary Fredericksen, Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation,
Sergio Gutierrez, City of Winters, Carol Richardson, City of West Sacramento,
Dan Bellini, City of Woodland, Tom Lopez, Yolo County, and Dena Humphrey,
Agency Manager.

Entry No. 2

Public Comment

None

Entry No. 3

Announcements

Agency Manager Dena Humphrey announced that Lee Sandoval, received the 2013 Dispatcher of
the Year award and Scott Roberson, received the 2013 Dispatch Assistant award. Both were
formally recognized and congratulated by the JPA Board.

Entry No. 4
Minute Order No. 2014-44: Approval of Agenda
The Agenda was approved as presented.

MOTION: Bellini SECOND: Richardson AYES: Fredericksen, Bellini, Gutierrez, Lopez,
Richardson.

Entry No. 5
Minute Order No. 2014-45: Approval of Consent Agenda
The Consent Agenda was approved as presented.

MOTION: Gutierrez SECOND: Bellini AYES: Fredericksen, Bellini, Gutierrez, Lopez,
Richardson.

Entry No. 6

Minute Order No. 2014-46: Automatic Transfer Switch (ATS) Electrical Construction
Contract

Dave Smith from ECOM gave a presentation on the Automatic Transfer Switch Replacement
Project. Board approved the recommended electrical contractor, Paschke Electric from Woodland
to perform the ATS replacement.



MOTION: Richardson SECOND: Gutierrez AYES: Fredericksen, Bellini, Gutierrez, Lopez,
Richardson.

Entry No. 7
Minute Order No. 2014-47: Governing Board Elections

For fiscal year 2014/2015, member Sergio Gutierrez was elected Chair and member Tom Lopez
was elected Vice-chair.

MOTION: Richardson SECOND: Bellini/Gutierrez AYES: Fredericksen, Bellini, Gutierrez,
Lopez, Richardson.

Entry No. 8
Minute Order No. 2014-48: EMD-Determinate Dispatching Impact on Call Times

Agency Manager Dena Humphrey informed the Board on the impact that EMD-Determinate
Dispatching has on call processing times. A review of the Medical Aid calls showed an increase
of doubling call processing times with full EMD determinate dispatching. Prior to
implementation of Determinate Dispatching, using the Pre-alert method, the average call
processing time was 90 seconds.

After some discussion the Board approved, that the pre-alert and then complete EMD method
would be adopted July 1, 2014. The Board also requested that quarterly stats be included in the
OPS Division Report.

MOTION: Gutierrez SECOND: Bellini AYES: Fredericksen, Bellini, Gutierrez, Lopez,
Richardson.

Entry No. 9
Text to 9-1-1

Agency Manager Dena Humphrey advised the Board of the progress being made with Text to 9-
1-1.
This was information only, no action was taken.

Entry No. 10
Software Maintenance Cost Allocations

Agency Manager Dena Humphrey advised the Board that YECA hosts several systems that
benefit both YECA and member agencies. YECA staff requested direction with regard to the
allocation of costs for software licensing when member agencies request to purchase additional
licenses.

The Board recommended that a cost allocation model be brought back to the next meeting.

Entry No. 11
Minute Order No. 2014-49: AMR CAD-to-CAD Interface

Board Chair Gary Fredericksen led the discussion on the CAD-to-CAD interface with AMR.
Board approved and delegated signing authority to Agency Manager, Dena Humphrey; to capture

2



the agreement in writing with AMR;, for payment to be received by January 1, 2015 and for the
connection work with Tri-Tech is to begin immediately.

MOTION: Richardson SECOND: Gutierrez AYES: Fredericksen, Bellini, Gutierrez, Lopez,
Richardson.

The July 2, 2014 scheduled meeting has been cancelled. The next scheduled meeting will be
August 6, 2014.

Meeting was adjourned at 4:10 p.m.
Minutes submitted by: Marci Criste, Recording Secretary



STAFF REPORT
Agenda Item: S.b.

Date: August 6, 2014

To: YECA Governing Board

Thru: Dena Humphrey, Agency Manager
From: Karen Avara, Operations Manager
Subject: Operations Division Report

Recommendation: No action required; information only.
Summary: Operations staff is currently engaged in the following:

e Grants:
0 FY12 HSGP- Final submittals for reimbursement to close out the grant.
0 FY13 HSGP- Final submittals for reimbursement to close out the grant.
0 FY14 HSGP-YECA submitted a request for $18,658 to add interior shelter
cameras at Cache Creek, Winters, Clarksburg, and the Port of West Sacramento.

e Staffing:
Received just over 100 applications during our open recruitment, 80 applicants were
scheduled for Critical testing July 19" and 26™, with 40 more scheduled to test August 2".
Of the 80 applicants tested 24% passed and are moving to interviews in August.

e Internal Affairs: May 15, 2014 through July 28, 2014
1. Grievances: None
2. Complaints: None
3. Commendations: Three

0 06/18/14- Yolo Sheriff Deputy Jose Pineda commended Dispatcher 11 Tammy
Lancaster for her outstanding performance during a foot pursuit.

o 07/06/14-Tammy Lancaster commended her night shift co-workers, Supervisor
Scott Fletcher, Dispatcher 11 Chris Brewer, Dispatcher 11’s Kim Lindsay,
Bonnie Christen, and Vanesa Hoyt, Dispatch Assistants Elaine Savage-
Helphingstine, and Scott Roberson, and trainee Nadia Wasilevsky for their
great teamwork on an extremely busy July 4™.

o 07/17/14-West Sacramento Police Sergeant Roger Kinney commended
Dispatcher Il Kim Lindsay for an outstanding job coordinating units and radio
traffic during a missing juvenile incident.



Statistical Information:
e Monthly Phone Statistics:

Month 9-1-1 Non-Emergency Outgoing Total
May 5,423 16,458 7,612 29,493
June 5,566 15,568 7,298 28,432

e Monthly CAD Events:
Included in “Other” category are AMR, Animal Control, All Public Works, County
Maintenance, Social Services, Environmental Health, and Public Guardian.

Month Law Fire Other
May 16,721 2,077 926
June 16,218 1,981 994

e Confidential Records Requests:
Month # of Requests
May 109
June 103




Agenda Item: S.c.

YECA BUDGET MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

2013 /2014 As of 7/31/14
17% 33% 50% 67% 83% 100%
AUG-13 OCT-13 DEC-13 FEB-14 APR-14 JUN-14
360 360-1 ADMINISTRATION
Appropriations $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492 $ 2,327,492
Expenditures $ 49,610 $ 130,805 $ 259,992 $ 550,208 $ 648,772 $ 730,529 $ 839,421 $ 901,070 $ 991,853 $ 1,113,663 $ 1,388,805 $ 1,616,932
Percent Expended 3% 6% 12% " 24% 28% " 31% 36% " 39% 3% 48% 60% 69%
360 360-2 OPERATIONS - DISPATCH
Appropriations $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268 $ 3,306,268
Expenditures $ 163,679 $ 348,791 $ 709,356 $ 965,348  $ 1,188,437 $ 1,379,023 $ 1,636,534 $ 1,816,287 $ 2,061,339 $ 2,374,480 $ 2,568,679 $ 2,936,892
Percent Expended 5% 11% 22% 29% 36% 42% 50% 55% 62% 72% 78% 89%
TOTAL for all budget units - B/U 360-1 Administration; 360-2 Operations Dispatch;
Estimated Revenue $ - 8 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760 $ 5,633,760
Realized Revenue $ 17,610 $ 18,844 $ 102,300 $ 1,098,628 $ 3,214,926 $ 3,217,791 $ 3725235 $ 3725242 $ 4,156,594 $ 4,238,575 $ 5,136,383 $ 5,145,363
Percent Realized 0% 0% 2% 20% 57% 57% 66% 66% 74% 75% 91% 91%
17% 33% 50% 67% 83% 100%
AUG-13 OCT-13 DEC-13 FEB-14 APR-14 JUN-14
360 360-3 cap CAD PROJECT
DWRGRANT  Appropriations $ 1349862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1349862 $ 1349862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $  1,349.862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862
&BofALease  Expenditures $ 3744 $ 45743 $ 50,040 $ 240,089 $ 485479 $ 611,174 $ 611,174 $ 613,244 $ 650,466 $ 650,466 $ 650,466 $ 653,946
Unencumbered $ 1,346,118 $ 1,304,119 $ 1299822 $ 1,109,773 $ 864,383 $ 738,688 $ 738,688 $ 736,618 $ 699,396 $ 699,396 $ 699,396 $ 695,916
Funding Percent Expended 0% 3% 4% 18% 36% 45% 45% 45% 48% 48% 48% 48%
Estimated Revenue $ 1349862 $  1,349862 $ 1349862 $ 1,349,862 $  1,349.862 $ 1349862 $  1,349.862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862 $ 1,349,862
Realized Revenue ) 3 ) ] 482,784 $ 608,478 $ 610,548 $ 610,548 $ 647,088 $ 647,088 $ 647,088 $ 650,568
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 36% 45% 45% 45% 48% 48% 48% 48%
360 360-3 pwr EOC/Radios
DWR GRANT Appropriations $ 13,327 $ 13,327 % 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13327 $ 13,327 $ 13327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327
PROG EOC Expenditures $ - 3 - % 2580 $ 2,580 $ 2580 $ 2,580 $ 11,977 $ 11977 $ 11,977 $ 13273 $ 13,273 $ 13,273
Unencumbered $ 13,327 $ 13,327 % 10,747 $ 10,747 $ 10,747 $ 10,747 $ 1,350 $ 1350 $ 1,350 $ 54 $ 54 $ 54
Percent Expended 0% 0% 19% 19% 19% 19% 90% 90% 90% 100% 100% 100%
Estimated Revenue $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13327 $ 13,327 $ 13327
Realized Revenue y 3 | vs$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $11,976.65
Unrealized Revenue #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 13,327 $ 1,350
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 90%
360 360-3 Fvi1  HSG FY12
HSG Grant Appropriations $ - $ - 0% - $ - 0% - $ - 0% - $ - % - $ 54,870 $ 54,870 $ 54,870
Radio & Microwave Projec' Expenditures $ - - 0% - $ - % - % - 0% - $ - % - $ 5744 $ 5995 $ 55,869
Percent Expended 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 11% 102%
Estimated Revenue $ -3 - 8 -3 - 8 - 3 - 8 - $ - 8 -3 54870 $ 54,870 $ 54,870
Realized Revenue N 3 ) 3 $ -8 - % -8 -8 -8 -8 -
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
360 360-3 Fviz HSG FY13
HSG Grant Appropriations $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658
Expenditures $ - $ - 8 - $ - 8 - $ - 8 - $ - 8 - $ - 8 -3 25,721
Percent Expended 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
Estimated Revenue $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658 $ 25,658
Realized Revenue $ - $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ = $ - $ -3 -
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL for Grant budget units - 3603 CAD PROJECT; 3603 DWR/EOC; 3603 FY12; 3603 FY13;
Appropriations $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,443,717 $ 1,443,717 $ 1,443,717
Expenditures $ 3,744 $ 45743 $ 52,620 $ 242,669 $ 488,059 $ 613,754 $ 623,151 $ 625221 $ 662,443 $ 669,483 $ 669,734 $ 748,808
Percent Expended 0% 3% 4% 17% 35% 44% 45% 45% 48% 46% 46% 52%
Estimated Revenue $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,388,847 $ 1,443,717 $ 1,443,717 $ 1,443,717
Realized Revenue $ - $ - - $ - 8 482,784 $ 608,478 $ 610,548 $ 610,548 $ 647,088 $ 647,088 $ 647,088 $ 662,545
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 35% 44% 44% 44% 47% 45% 45% 46%




Agenda Item: 6.a.

FY13 External Audit Presentation, Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP

FY 13 Final Audit attached



STAFF REPORT

Agenda Item: 7.a

Date: August 6, 2014

To: YECA Governing Board

Thru: Dena Humphrey, Agency Manager
From: Mike Bowler, IT Manager

Subject: Software Licensing Cost Allocations
Summary:

At the June 4, 2014 Board meeting, the Board asked for the Agency to return with a
recommendation for future licensing cost allocations.

As earlier noted, YECA hosts several software systems that benefit both YECA and member
agencies. One of those systems is Omnixx, which allows users to access CLETS via a web
browser from any desktop within their respective agency.

A member agency recently requested a quote for the purchase of six (6) additional licenses for the
Omnixx system. These six (6) licenses carry an initial cost of about $2,300 with an annual
recurring cost of about $600.

The Ominxx licensing is currently allocated as follows:

AGENCY TOTAL
DA’s Office
Probation
Social Services
UCD

WDP 1
WNP

WSP

YONET

YSO

YECA

Davis PD

Davis Sun ridge
CAD 41

OMNIXX TOTAL.: 92

N[~ |W

o

A~ O~ | |00 O

Past practice when handling these purchase requests have varied, but generally the requesting
agency has paid for the one-time purchase of software, and the annual recurring costs have been
rolled into the YECA budget.

Recommendation:

YECA staff respectfully recommends to continue having the member agency’s pay for the initial
license and YECA pay the annual recurring costs, since the current number of software licenses
are in proportion with the member agency shares. The recommendation would also include
bringing this item back to the Board should upward trending occur.



STAFF REPORT

Agenda Item: 8.a.

Date: August 6, 2014

To: YECA Governing Board

From: Dena Humphrey, Communications Agency Manager
Subject: Developing Standard Levels of Service

Due to the ever changing needs of the individual member agencies, YECA is seeking to develop
standard levels of service. The purpose is to establish a baseline as part of a bigger picture of
creating a “Change Policy.” Current practices for reviewing and managing services new and old,
is lacking a formal process for review. The goal is to establish standard levels of service for a
shared understanding of needs and priorities; to manage service improvements; and most
importantly communicate expectations to staff and better training.

Once the standard levels of service have been formalized, the creation of a “Change Policy,”
could be brought to the Board. Current practice is lacking specific protocols for approvals on
changes. The “Change Policy,” would establish at what level of authority requests could be made
for daily field operations, whereas requests that required funding for technology, staffing, etc.
would be brought to the Board for a more formal review.

YECA is requesting support by the Board to form a committee of two Board members to meet
once or twice with other agency users to review a sample list of services provided by YECA.

This meeting would be to discuss and create Standard Levels of Service. This meeting would also
be beneficial in reviewing services for duplication of effort or for services no longer needed. This
will allow us to make things more efficient and to ensure YECA is allocating resources
appropriately.



	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING
	YECA GOVERNING BOARD
	Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA 95695
	August 6, 2014
	3:00 P.M. Public Session


Back to Agenda

YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY
Independent Auditor’s Reports,
Basic Financial Statements, and
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Certified Public Accountants.




mcriste

Typewritten Text

Back to Agenda





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Table of Contents

Page(s)
Independent AUITOr’S REPOIT.... ..ottt sttt seesbe s e saesreeneesreeneas 1-2
Basic Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position — Governmental ACHIVITIES ..........ccovviiiiiiiieii e 3
Statement of Activities — Governmental ACHIVILIES ........ccoviviiiiriiee e 4
Balance Sheet — General FUNG. ..o 5
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net POSItion ..o 6
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in
Fund Balance — General FUNG ...........oooiiiioeie et 7
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of ACtIVITIES .......ccovviiieiii i 8
Notes to the Basic Financial StatementsS...........coceoeeiiiiiieie e 9-25
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):
Schedule of Funding Progress for Other
Postemployment BENETITS PLAN .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 26
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund
Balance — Budget and Actual — General FUNG ..o 27
Notes to the Required Supplementary INfOrmation .........cccoccevviveieerieic s 28
Other Report:
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards...................... 29-30

Schedule of CUrrent Year FINGING ........cccoiuiiiiiiiiiiieeees et 31-32





www.mgocpa.com

Certified Public Accountants.

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
Woodland, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general
fund of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise YECA'’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of YECA, as of June 30,
2013, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Sacramento
3000 S Street,

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

Oakland

LA/Century City

Newport Beach

San Diego

Seattle

Proud To Be Boring Accountants:





Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of
Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefit Plan and the budgetary comparison information on
pages 25 through 27 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 9, 2014 on
our consideration of YECA'’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering YECA'’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

S 2 /%«4: € O el L7

Sacramento, California
July 9, 2014





BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities
June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Imprest cash $ 300
Cash in County Treasury 582,578
Due from other governments 416,096
Restricted assets:
Cash with fiscal agent 1,428,612
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 426,564
Depreciable, net 3,809,695
Total Assets 6,663,845
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 37,830
Accrued payroll 109,795
Due to other governments 1,877
Accrued interest 26,217
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 285,991
Due in more than one year 3,375,937
Total Liabilities 3,837,647
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,433,189
Unrestricted 393,009
Total Net Position $ 2,826,198

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
3





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

PROGRAM EXPENSES
Public safety - 911 communications

Salaries and employee benefits $ 3,700,676
Services and supplies 1,189,294
Depreciation 392,930
Interest on long-term debt 219,774
Total Program Expenses 5,502,674

PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating grants and contributions 5,007,448
Capital grants and contributions 1,452,786

Total Program Revenues 6,460,234
Net Revenue 957,560

GENERAL REVENUES

Interest earnings 3,744
Other 61,135

Total General Revenues 64,879
Change in Net Position 1,022,439
Net Position - beginning of year, as restated 1,803,759
Net Position - end of year $ 2,826,198

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
4





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Balance Sheet
General Fund
June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Imprest cash $ 300
Cash in County Treasury 582,578
Due from other governments 416,096
Restricted assets:
Cash with fiscal agent 1,428,612
Total Assets $ 2,427,586
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 37,830
Accrued payroll 109,795
Due to other governments 1,877
Total Liabilities 149,502
Fund Balance:
Restricted for capital projects 1,428,612
Unassigned 849,472
Total Fund Balance 2,278,084
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,427,586

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
5





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Fund balance - General Fund $
Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the General Fund.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the General Fund.

Other postemployment benefits

Accrued interest

Capital lease

Compensated absences

2,278,084

4,236,259

(276,756)
(26,217)
(3,231,682)
(153,490)

Net position - Governmental Activities $

2,826,198

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
6





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Change in Fund Balance - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:
Federal
State
Contributions
Investment earnings
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits
Services and supplies

Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - beginning of year

Fund Balance - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

7

$

145,902
1,306,884
5,007,448

3,744
61,135

6,525,113

3,664,774
1,615,858

201,972
219,596
1,095,191

6,797,391

(272,278)

2,550,362

2,278,084






YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Change in fund balance - General Fund
Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:

The General Fund reports capital outlay as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those items is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay $ 1,521,755

Depreciation expense (392,930)

Repayment of long-term liabilities are expenditures in the General
Fund, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Other expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current

financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the General

Fund.
Change in compensated absences 35,460
Change in other postemployment benefits (71,362)
Change in accrued interest (178)

$ (272,278)

1,128,825

201,972

(36,080)

Change in net position - Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
8

$ 1,022,439





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), formerly known as Yolo County
Communications Emergency Service Agency, was established June 21, 1988 by Agreement No. 88-133,
which is a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (Agreement) pursuant to Government Code 6500 et seq.

YECA includes all operating activities considered to be a part of YECA. YECA reviewed the criteria
developed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its issuance of Statement No.
14, which was amended by Statement No. 61, relating to the financial reporting entity to determine
whether YECA is financially accountable for other entities. YECA has determined that no other outside
entity meets the above criteria, and therefore, no agency has been included as a component unit in
YECA’s financial statements.

The parties making up the Joint Powers Agency (JPA) are the County of Yolo and the Cities of
Woodland, West Sacramento, and Winters. The parties each appoint members to the governing board of
YECA.

YECA was created to provide mutual benefits, such as cost savings and greater operational efficiency, to
the county and the cities through the sharing of communication facilities, emergency services, and
increased management control.

Each party retains the ownership of its radio frequencies, but allows the use of these frequencies by
YECA.

Under the Agreement, each party in YECA contributes to the budget of YECA. These contributions are
based on various formulas outlined in Section 9.2 of the JPA Agreement.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting
Government-Wide Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the primary
government (YECA). These statements include the financial activities of the overall government.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
YECA's governmental activity. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include grants and contributions, as well as contributions
received from JPA members that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
YECA. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including investment income, are
presented instead as general revenues.





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for the General Fund. YECA’s General Fund accounts for all
of its financial resources and activities. The General Fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current
period. "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available” means
collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period.

YECA uses an availability period of 365 days for revenue recognition for its General Fund revenues.
Those revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and
investment income.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

Nonexchange transactions, in which YECA gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations. On a modified accrual basis,
revenues from nonexchange transactions are recognized when the underlying transactions take place and
have met the 365-day availability criteria. Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Cash in County Treasury

YECA maintains cash and investments with the Yolo County Treasurer (Treasurer) in a cash and
investment pool. On a quarterly basis, the Treasurer allocates interest to participants based upon their
average daily balances. Required disclosure information regarding the categorization of investments and
other deposit and investment risk disclosures can be found in the County of Yolo's (County)
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The County’s financial statements may be obtained by
contacting the County Auditor-Controller's office at 625 Court Street, Room 103, Woodland, California
95776. The Yolo County Treasury Oversight Committee oversees the Treasurer's investments and
policies.

YECA has no deposit or investment policy that addresses interest rate, credit, or custodial credit risk.

Investments held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized
cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

10





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash with Fiscal Agents

Cash with fiscal agent represents proceeds from debt related to YECA’s capital lease financing
arrangement with Bank of America. Refer to Note 4 for more information relating to the debt issuance.

Due From Other Governments

These amounts represent receivables from other governmental agencies. Management believes its
receivables to be fully collectible and, accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been
established.

Capital Assets

Capital assets have been acquired for general operational purposes. Assets purchased are recorded as
expenditures in the General Fund and capitalized at cost or estimated cost where no historical records are
available in the government-wide financial statements. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated
fair market value on the date contributed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets, including
intangible assets, are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15
years in the government-wide financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Unused vacation leave and compensatory time off may be accumulated up to a specified maximum and is
paid at the time employment with YECA is terminated. YECA is not obligated to pay for unused sick
leave if employment is terminated prior to retirement.

The accumulated benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them. In the normal
course of business, all payments of these accumulated benefits will be funded from appropriations of the
year in which they are to be paid; therefore, the total liability is recorded in the government-wide financial
statements only. In accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for Compensated
Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits.

11





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Balance/Net Position

Fund Balance

In fiscal year 2011, YECA adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54 — Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. GASB established the following classification of fund
balance:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance — amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Committed Fund Balance — amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action by the entity’s “highest level of decision-making authority",
which YECA considers to be resolutions adopted by YECA'’s Board of Directors.

Assigned Fund Balance — includes amounts of fund balance that reflect YECA's intended use of
resources for specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance — includes resources in fund balance that cannot be classified into any
of the other categories.

YECA's spending priority is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balance.

Net Position

Net position comprises the various net earnings from YECA’s revenues, expenses, and contributions of
capital. Net position is classified in the following three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of all capital assets, including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and any related outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvements of those assets.

Restricted Net Position — Restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
related to those assets.

Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is YECA's policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

12





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Members' Contributions

Each member of YECA contributes annually based on YECA's budget. Members' contributions are
determined by various formulas set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement. Contributions are payable in
guarterly installments before the first day of each quarter.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting Pronouncements Implemented

Effective July 1, 2012, YECA implemented the following new governmental accounting standards:

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, introduced and defined in GASB Concepts
Statement No. 4. This statement incorporates deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming
that measure as net positions, rather than net assets.

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The objective of this
statement is to properly classify as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.
Refer to Note 10 for additional disclosure on the impact to YECA’s beginning net position resulting
from the implementation of this statement.

13





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized cost
plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. As of June 30, 2013, YECA's total cash in the

County of Yolo Treasury was $582,578.

Deposits held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized cost
plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. As of June 30, 2013, YECA's total cash in the
County of Yolo Treasury was $582,578.

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of Net Position

Cash in County Treasury $ 582,578
Imprest cash 300
Restricted assets - cash with fiscal agent 1,428,612

Total Cash and Investments $ 2,011,490

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code

The table on the following page identifies the investment types that are authorized for YECA by the
California Government Code. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government
Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt
agreements of the YECA, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code.

14





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio* One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A None None

*Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather
than the general provisions of the California Government Code. The table below identifies the investment
types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions
of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Allowed One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts 30 years None None

15





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is
to changes in market interest rates. The weighted average maturity of the County’s external investment
pool as of June 30, 2013 was 332 days. The weighted average maturity of the investments held by fiscal
agent as of June 30, 2013 was 49 days.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization (Standard and Poor’s). Presented below is the minimum rating required by the
California Government Code, or debt agreements and the actual rating as of June 30, 2013 of YECA’s
investments that are exposed to credit risk:

Minimum Legal Rating as of

Investment Type Rating June 30, 2013
Cash with fiscal agent:
Money market mutual funds A AAAM

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision
for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made
by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of
the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

16





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

As of June 30, 2013, YECA does not have any deposits with financial institutions. As of June 30, 2013,
YECA invested bond proceeds in the following investment types and were held by the same broker-dealer
(counterparty) that was used by the YECA to buy the securities:

Reported
Investment Type Amount
Money market mutual funds $ 1,428,612

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013
CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPRECIATED
Construction in progress $ - $ 426564 3 - $ 426,564
CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED
Building and improvements 150,000 - - 150,000
Computer equipment 5,131,697 1,095,191 - 6,226,888
Vehicles 62,501 - (21,981) 40,520
Furniture and fixtures 117,627 - - 117,627
Total capital assets, being depreciated 5,461,825 1,095,191 (21,981) 6,535,035
LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Building and improvements (22,170) (7,500) - (29,670)
Computer and equipment (2,183,342) (370,260) - (2,553,602)
Vehicles (55,683) (3,408) 21,981 (37,110)
Furniture and fixtures (93,196) (11,762) - (104,958)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,354,391) (392,930) 21,981 (2,725,340)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 3,107,434 702,261 - 3,809,695
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 3,107,434 $ 1,128,825 $ - $ 4,236,259

Depreciation expense was charged to the public safety - 911 communications function in the amount of
$392,930 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

17





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013 One Year
Capital lease $ 3433654 $ - $ (201972) $ 3,231,682 $ 209,246
Net OPEB obligation 205,394 115,892 (44,530) 276,756 -
Compensated absences 188,950 252,889 (288,349) 153,490 76,745
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 3,827,998 $ 368,781 $ (534,851) 3,661,928 $ 285991

On November 18, 2010, YECA and the County of Yolo as co-issuer, issued $3,724,000 in ARRA-
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds (the Bonds) to finance (and reimburse for prior
expenditures related to) the expansion, refurbishment, improvement, and equipping of its regional
emergency communications system. Net proceeds, after the payment of issuance costs, were deposited
with Deutsch Bank, acting as trustee. Concurrently, YECA along with the County of Yolo as co-issuer,
entered into a Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement with Bank of America to finance the lease
purchase of emergency communications equipment. Lease payments will be used to finance the
repayment of the Bonds. The Bonds provide for a Federal subsidy of 45% of the interest paid on the
Bonds to the issuer. The interest rate on the lease is 6.49%, with a maturity date of November 18, 2025.
To obtain the subsidy, YECA must file a claim with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) when an interest
payment on the Bonds are made.

Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2013, are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Payments

2014 $ 415,617

2015 409,451

2016 403,064

2017 396,446

2018 389,590
2019-2023 1,836,151
2024-2026 840,801
Total Future Lease Payments  $ 4,691,120
Less: Interest (1,459,438)

Net Capital Lease $ 3,231,682

The carrying amount of the assets acquired under the capital lease totaled $1,101,396 at June 30, 2013,
which is the cost of $1,222,146, net of accumulated depreciation of $120,750.

18





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 5: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

YECA contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. CalPERS provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries.  All full-time permanent safety employees are required to participate in CalPERS. To
be eligible for retirement, members of the Safety Coverage Group must be at least 50 years of age, and
have a minimum of five years of CalPERS credited service.

Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by contract with CalPERS in accordance
with the provisions of the Public Employees Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the
CalPERS Executive Office - 400 Q Street - Sacramento, CA 95814,

Funding Policy

The employees' contribution rate is seven percent (7%) of their annual salaries. YECA is required to
contribute the amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members using the actuarial basis
recommended by the CalPERS actuaries. YECA makes the contributions required of its employees on
their behalf and for their account. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by statute
and therefore generally remain unchanged from year to year. YECA is required to contribute the
actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. YECA’s
required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was 11.924%. The contribution
requirements of the plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is
established and may be amended by CalPERS.

Annual Pension Cost

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, YECA's annual pension cost was $290,351. YECA also paid
$170,451 of employee contribution. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30,
2010 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method with the contributions determined as a
percentage of pay.

19





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 5: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Three year trend information is as follows:

Annual Pension Percentage of
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) APC Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 179,723 100%
June 30, 2012 284,046 100%
June 30, 2013 290,351 100%

NOTE 6: DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

YECA offers to each non-safety employee a 401A Money Purchase Plan (MPP) administered by the
VALIC Retirement Services Company. Each participant has an individual account with VALIC into
which all contributions are recorded. The participants are offered various investment options through the
MPP and are allowed to invest moneys in their account, at their own discretion, among the options.
YECA may amend, modify, or terminate the MPP, upon approval of such amendment, modification, or
termination by YECA’s Board of Director’s approval. Employees covered by the MPP are eligible to
participate from the date of employment. The MPP defines YECA contributions which range from 3-6
percent of employees base salary based on the employees designated employee group. Employee
contributions to the MPP are not permitted. Under the MPP each participant is 100 percent vested in the
amounts credited to the participants account at all times. During the year ended June 30, 2013,
contributions paid to the MPP were $32,481.

NOTE 7: OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

YECA sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide postemployment health benefits to
eligible retirees and their spouses through CalPERS (the Plan). Benefit allowance provisions are
established through resolution between YECA and three employee groups: general, supervisor, and
management. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Plan members include current retirees and active employees of YECA. Eligible plan members are YECA
employees who have retired from active employment with YECA and have five years of service credit
with CalPERS. There is not a minimum service period with YECA to be eligible for the retiree
health/medical benefit. The benefit allowance provides a lifetime allowance to eligible plan members and
their surviving spouses, if applicable. The benefit allowance is provided in conjunction with the MOU
terms allowing retirees to continue their current health insurance which also covers active members.

20





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 7: OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of YECA are established and may be amended by YECA's Board of
Directors. For eligible plan members, YECA provides a maximum monthly benefit allowance of $252.62
for general and supervisor members and $700 per month for management. Any and all insurance
premium costs incurred by retirees above the monthly benefit allowance are borne by the retiree.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

YECA's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC). YECA has elected to calculate the ARC and related
information using the alternative measurement method permitted by GASB Statement No. 45 for
employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following
table shows the components of YECA's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to
the Plan, and changes in YECA's net OPEB obligation to the provide health benefits:

Annual Required Contribution $ 114,039
Interest on net OPEB obligation 11,297
Adjustment to ARC (9,444)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 115,892
Contributions made (44,530)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 71,362
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 205,394
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 276,756

YECA's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual cost contributed toward the plan members'
benefit allowances, and the net OPEB obligation, are as follows:

Percentage of
Annual OPEB Amount Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended: Cost Contributed Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 103,609 $ 36,934 35.65% $ 133,369
June 30, 2012 111,930 39,905 35.65% 205,394
June 30, 2013 115,892 44,530 38.42% 276,756

21





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 7: OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2013, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits was $1,356,000, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $2,243,000, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
to the covered payroll was 60.56 percent.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the basic financial statements, will present multiyear trend information
as its available, about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following simplifying assumptions were made related to the alternative measurement method:

e Retirement age for active employees — Based on the historical average retirement age for the
covered group, active plan members were assumed to retire at age 57, or at the first subsequent
year in which the member would qualify for benefits.

e Marital status — Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue
throughout retirement.

e Mortality — Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the National Center for Health
Statistics.

e Turnover — Non-group-specific age-based turnover data from GASB Statement No. 45 were used
as the basis for assigning active members a probability of remaining employed until the assumed
retirement age and for developing an expected future working lifetime assumption for purposes of
allocating to periods the present value of total benefits to be paid.

e Healthcare cost trend rate — No increases were calculated since the retirees are at the maximum
YECA contribution, except for certain management retirees where the cost increase is based on
National Health Expenditures, updated September 2010, until the amount equals the maximum
contribution.

22





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 7: OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)
Methods and Assumptions (Continued)

e Health insurance premiums — 2010 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis
for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

e Inflation rate — The expected long-term inflation assumption of 3.3 percent was based on
projected changes in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers
(CPI-W) in The 2010 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and
Survivors Insurance and Disability Insurance Trust Funds for an intermediate growth scenario.

e Payroll growth rate — The expected long-term payroll growth rate was assumed to equal the rate
of inflation.

Based on the historical and expected returns of YECA's short-term investment portfolio, a discount rate of
5.5 percent was used. In addition, a simplified version of the entry age actuarial cost method was used.
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
an open basis over 30 years.

The benefit allowance was deemed a community rated plan and therefore, no implicit rate subsidy was
determined in the actuarial valuation.

NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT

YECA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

YECA nparticipates in the Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Agency
(YCPARMIA), a joint power agency (risk-sharing pool) made up of other governmental entities within
the County. YECA is covered for general liability and automobile liability, workers' compensation,
property damage, and fidelity through YCPARMIA. Through YCPARMIA membership in the California
Joint Powers Insurance Agency (CALJPIA), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for
catastrophic liability losses. Loss contingency reserves established by YCPARMIA are funded by
contributions from member agencies.

23





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The annual contribution YCPARMIA charges to each agency is based upon its pro-rata share of excess
insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk (losses) recognizing the deductible selected, claims
adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs to operate the YCPARMIA. Settled claims
from these risks did not exceed coverage for the past three years. YECA's deductible and maximum
coverage are as follows:

Coverage Deductible YCPARMIA CALJPIA CSAC

General and auto liability $ 1,000 $ 500,000 $ 40,000,000 $ -
Workers' compensation 1,000 500,000 - Layered
Property damage - Property 1,000 25,000 - 60,000
Fidelity 1,000 25,000 - -
Boiler and machinery 1,000 5,000 - 100,000,000

NOTE 9: LEASE COMMITMENTS

As of June 30, 2013, future lease payments under operating leases were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30:
2014 $ 36,831
2015 37,936
2016 39,074
2017 40,246
2018 41,454
2019 28,183
Total Future Lease Payments $ 223,724

Rental expenditures were $35,935 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
NOTE 10: RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Effective July 1, 2012, YECA implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities. As a result of this implementation, YECA restated its beginning net position by
reducing it $51,692, which represents unamortized bond issuance costs as of June 30, 2012. Under
GASB Statement No. 65, bond issuance costs are no longer deferred and amortized, but rather expensed
when incurred.

24





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 11: FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections: 2012 — An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 10 and No. 62. This statement amends Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removing the provision that limits fund-
based reporting of a state and local government’s risk financing activities to the general fund and the
internal service fund type. This statement also amends Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements,
by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a
straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal
amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are
sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current servicing fee rate. This statement
is effective for the YECA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided
by other entities. This statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. This statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension
Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. This statement will require YECA to record a net
pension liability related to its defined benefit pension plan, as defined by the standard. This statement is
effective for YECA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

25





REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(Unaudited)





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
June 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued Acturial Unfunded Actuarial UAAL as a

Liability (AAL) Value of Accrued Liability Funded  Annual Covered Percentage

Valuation Date  Simplified Entry Age Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll of Payroll
June 30,2010 $ 1,067,080 $ - $ 1,067,080 0.0% $ 2,710,290 39.4%
June 30, 2013 1,356,000 - 1,356,000 0.0% 2,243,000 60.5%

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
26





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:
Federal $ 98,818 $ 98,818 $ 145,902 $ 47,084
State 1,325,000 1,325,000 1,306,884 (18,116)
Charges for services 4,962,481 4,962,481 5,007,448 44,967
Use of money and property - - 3,744 3,744
Other - - 61,135 61,135
Total Revenues 6,386,299 6,386,299 6,525,113 138,814
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 3,733,129 3,733,129 3,664,774 68,355
Services and supplies 2,633,495 2,633,495 1,615,858 1,017,637
Debt service:

Principal 201,972 201,972 201,972 -
Interest 219,596 219,596 219,596 -
Capital outlay 1,118,637 1,118,637 1,095,191 23,446

Total Expenditures 7,906,829 7,906,829 6,797,391 1,109,438
Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures (1,520,530) (1,520,530) (272,278) 1,248,252
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capital lease proceeds 1,520,980 1,520,980 - (1,520,980)
Change in Fund Balance 450 450 (272,278) (272,728)
Fund Balance - beginning of year (450) (450) 2,550,362 2,550,812
Fund Balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 2,278,084 $ 2,278,084

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
27





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1: SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Because the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation was the first valuation prepared under the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 45, there is no historical information provided. In the future, information from the
three most recent valuations will be presented.

NOTE 2: BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

YECA prepares and legally adopts a final budget on or before June 30 of each fiscal year. YECA
operations, commencing July 1, is governed by the proposed budget, adopted by the JPA Board of
Directors in June of the prior year.

After the budget is approved, the Executive Director is authorized to execute transfers between major
budget units as long as the total expenditures for each budget unit remain unchanged.

An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year on the modified accrual basis. Additionally,
encumbrance accounting is utilized to assure effective budgetary control. Encumbrances outstanding at
year-end represent the estimated amount of the expenditures ultimately to result if the unperformed
contracts in process at year-end are completed or purchase commitments satisfied. Such year-end
encumbrances are reported as unassigned fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities
because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year and included in the subsequent
year's budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end and are subject to appropriation in the
subsequent periods.

28





OTHER REPORT





Sacramento
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816

Certified Public Accountants. o14.098:4500

Walnut Creek

Oakland
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in LA/Century City
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards
Newport Beach
Board of Directors
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
Woodland, California Seattle

San Diego

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities and the general fund of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise YECA'’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 9, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered YECA’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and a
significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings as item 2013-001
to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings
as item 2013-002 to be a significant deficiency.

bk b 29 Proud To Be Boring Accountants.





Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YECA’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

YECA'’s Response to Findings

YECA’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
current year findings. YECA’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

S 2 /%«4: € O el L7

Sacramento, California
July 9, 2014

30





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Schedule of Current Year Findings
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Item 2013-001 — Capital Assets

Criteria:

Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs directly related to the acquisition or construction of
capital assets, should be capitalized and not expensed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an
initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

Condition:
Transactions relating to YECA’s Computer Aided Dispatch capital asset project were expensed.

Cause:
YECA does not utilize primary general ledger accounts to record capital expenditure activity, thus costs
incurred for capital activity were not identified and reclassified as capital asset additions.

Effect:

As a result of this condition, a material audit adjustment debiting “capital assets” on the Statement of Net
Position and crediting “services and supplies” expense on the Statement of Activities for $426,524 was
recorded.

Recommendation:
YECA should provide training to its employees identifying the differences between capital expenditures
and noncapital expenditures, thus improving the financial reporting process.

Management Response:

Management agrees with the finding and has reassigned the tracking of capital assets from IT to
administrative staff and will provide training and develop procedures to capture capital asset costs on the
capital asset list.

Item 2013-002 — OPEB Actuarial Valuation

Criteria:

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, an entity with fewer than 200 members is required to
have an actuarial valuation performed at least on a triennial basis.

Condition:

YECA did not have an actuarial valuation performed for its OPEB obligation within the last three fiscal
years that covers fiscal year 2012/2013. YECA obtained an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2010,
which was to be utilized for fiscal years 2009/2010, 2010/2011 and 2011/2012. YECA subsequently
obtained an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2013 that will be utilized for fiscal years 2013/2014,
2014/2015 and 2015/2016.

31





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY

Schedule of Current Year Findings (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Cause:

YECA was not fully aware of the actuarial valuation requirements stipulated by GASB Statement No. 45,
thus YECA did not contract with an actuary to perform its OPEB plan valuation covering fiscal year
2012/2013.

Effect:
As a result of this condition, YECA is not in compliance with GASB Statement No. 45.

Recommendation:
YECA management should obtain GASB Statement No.45 training, as well as have an actuarial valuation
performed to be in compliance with the requirements of the standard.

Management Response:

YECA'’s last actuarial valuation was completed for fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, covering fiscal year
2010/2011 and fiscal year 2011/2012. Under GASB Statement No. 45, a valuation would cover a three
year period and was assumed fiscal year 2012/2013 was covered. Each year the funding model for
retirees is budgeted on a fixed amount. Since, fiscal year 2012/2013 had lapsed during this audit period
and funding was already in place, it posed minimal risk to begin the new actuarial valuation period
beginning with fiscal year 2013/2014. This decision made fiscal sense and provided an additional year
extending the period through fiscal year 2015/2016. The new actuarial valuation was completed by Bartel
Associates on June 6, 2014, covering fiscal year 2013/2014, fiscal year 2014/2015, and fiscal year
2015/2016.

32





		3-8.pdf

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8











